HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
FI RST SPECI AL SESSI ON
June 10, 2017
11: 20 a. m

11:20: 43 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Foster called the House Finance Committee neeting
to order at 11:20 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton, Co-Chair
Representative Les Gara, Vice-Chair
Representative Jason G enn
Representative David Quttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representative Dan Otiz
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Cathy Tilton
Representative Tanme W/ son
Representative Mark Neuman (alternate)

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Steve Thonpson

ALSO PRESENT

Paul Labol | e, Staff, Representative Neal Foster; Rob
Carpenter, Analyst, Legislative Finance Division; Ed King,
Speci al Assistant, Departnent of Natural Resources; John
Ski dnmore, Director, Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law,
Gene Therriault, Deputy Director, Statewi de Energy Policy
Devel opnent , Al aska Energy Authority, Depart ment of
Commerce, Conmunity and Econom c¢ Devel opnent; M ke Vigue,
Di rector of Program Devel opnent, Depart ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities; Pat Pitney, D rector,
O fice of Managenent and Budget, Ofice of the Governor;
Brian Fechter, Analyst, Ofice of Managenent and Budget;
Representati ve DelLena Johnson; Representati ve Ceor ge
Rauscher ; Representati ve Col | een Sul | i van- Leonar d;
Representative Dan Saddl er; Representative Andy Josephson.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 06/ 10/ 17 11:20 A M



PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Frank Richards, Senior Vice President, Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation (AGDC); Heidi Teshner, Director,
School Finance and Facilities, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent.

SUMVARY

CSSB 23(FIN) am
APPROP: CAPI TAL BUDCET

CSSB 23(FIN) am was HEARD and HELD in conmttee
for further consideration.

[ Note: neeting recessed to the followng day and the bil
was reported out at that tinme. See June 11, 2017 2:00 p.m
m nutes for detail.]

Co-Chair Foster reviewed the neeting agenda. He infornmed
menbers that anendnents were due by 2:00 p.m that day.

#sb23

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 23(FIN am
"An Act nmaking appropriations, including capita
appropriations, suppl enent al appropriations,

reappropriations, and other appropriations; anending
appropriations; making appropriations to capitalize
funds; and providing for an effective date."

11: 22: 03 AM

Co-Chair Seaton MOVED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) for CSSB 23(FIN am Wrk Draft 30-GS1854\T
(Martin, 6/9/17). There being NO OBJECTION, it was so
or der ed.

11: 23: 00 AM
RECESSED

2:15:49 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Foster explained that the CS had been adopted
earlier in the day.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



PAUL LABOLLE, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE NEAL FOSTER, expl ained
the changes in the CS from the Senate version to House
version T:

The first change can be found on page 7, on line 19,
AHFC Suppl enental Housing Devel opnent, $750, 000 that
was decrenented in Senate has been restored. On Line
21, AHFC  Teacher Housi ng and Publ i c Saf ety
Prof essionals Housing, the sanme $750,000 that was
decrenmented in the Senate has also been replaced. On
Line 31, Alaska Marine H ghway System (AVHS) vessel

there’s a fund source change in the nunbers section,
page 11 and 12, and it changes the fund source from
vessel replacenent fund to general fund as was in the

original version of the bill. Next page, page 8, line
4, Public and Community Transportation State Match $1
mllion, this was renoved in the Senate and replaced

in this version

2:18:56 PM

M. Labolle turned to page 49, |ine 10:

This is language having to do with the paynent of
settlements and judgenents assessed to the state, that
| anguage was renoved in the Senate version and
replaced wth line item appropriations of specific
j udgenent s and settl enments. That line item
appropriation was replaced wth Jlanguage in the
governor’ s suppl enent al

Representative WIson asked why they went from nore
transparency to | ess.

M. Labolle replied there was one settlenent that had been
excluded in the line itens, which was for Planned
Par ent hood. Legislative Legal Services preferred open-ended
| anguage in the event there were judgenents and settlenments
that were unknown at the drafting of the bill.

Representative WIson asked about the anount for Planned
Par ent hood.

M. Labolle replied $1.1 mllion. The next change appeared
on page 57, |ine 20.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



The Senate had put in language to rmake an
appropriation wth Alaska Liquefied Natural Gas
(AKLNG) project funds to the Departnent of Law for

additional prosecuting attorneys. In our version of
the bill we extended the effective years of the
appropriation so it would include FY 18, FY 19 and FY
20.

2:21:29 PM

Representative W/Ilson asked if it would allow contracting
out for attorneys.

M. Laboll e was not sure.

ROB CARPENTER, ANALYST, LEQ SLATIVE FINANCE DI VISION, did
not know precisely; however, given the |anguage stating “to
hire additional prosecuting attorneys” that it would be in-
house. He noted it would be a Legislative Legal Services
guesti on.

Vice-Chair Gara noted that the state had sonetines
contracted out for defense attorneys at a |lower rate,
sonetimes for civil attorneys, but had not contracted out
for prosecutors.

Representative WIson noted that she did not know whet her
it had been offered in light of the case backlog. She was
curious about the tinmeline of three years versus one year.
She could wait to hear from Legislative Legal Services.

2:23:27 PM

M. Labolle turned to the next change on page 57, |line 30:

This is a reappropriation that funds the ASTAR [Arctic
strategic transportation and resources] project and it
reappropriates noney from Departnent of Transportation
and Public Facilities, Trunk Road (phase one) fromthe
Department of Natural Resources for reservoir studies,
North Slope and Cook Inlet; and from the Al aska
Railroad for Tanana R ver Dbridge access, and the
anount of that reappropriation was $7.8 mllion.

Representative WIson thought it |ooked |like the "road to

resources."” She stated there was a l|lot of discussion of
whet her AIDEA [Alaska Industrial Developnent and Export

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Aut hority] was going to fund that project. She asked if it
was the same project. If so, she wondered what part of the
project it would fund.

M. Labolle deferred to the departnent.

ED KING SPECI AL ASSI STANT, DEPARTMENT  OF  NATURAL
RESOURCES, answered the noney was for the pre-engineering
phase of the project. The noney would be used to hire four
people for contract work. He referred to the NPRA
[ Nati onal Petroleum Reserve in Alaska]. Currently those
activities were not permtted under the nanagenent plan of
the NPR-A, but with the recent signature of U S. Departnent
of Interior Secretary Ryan Zinke the departnent could get
the infrastructure into the areas. The design for the road
was part of the process. The intent of the project was to
connect nultiple communities and to open access.

Representative WIson asked if it wuld be a state
mai nt ai ned road or would be free of restrictions.

M. King answered they were in early stages of the project.
Currently the departnent was |eaning towards some form of
revenue bondi ng by the borough to take on managenent of the
road through arrangenents with industry partners. They were
not envisioning the road woul d be st at e- nai nt ai ned.

Representative WIson hoped if the nobney was put into the
road that everyone would have access. Sonme of the nonies
were comng from the Tanana Bridge, which can be used by
Fai rbanks residents for a week or two each year for hunting
purposes. She felt it was putting a lot of nobney into
something that could not be wutilized. She preferred
sonething that all Al askans coul d use.

2:27: 23 PM

M. Laboll e spoke to page 57, line 12:

This is Departnment of Public Safety |anguage that the
Senate put in for the hiring of additional state
troopers. Simlar to what we did with Departnent of
Law we extended the fiscal years of that appropriation
to include FY 18, FY 19 and FY 20.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Representative CQuttenberg spoke to nobney taken out of the
AKLNG project fund. He wondered if the commttee could hear
fromthe departnent regarding the inpact of that decrenent.

2:28: 39 PM
AT EASE

2:30: 20 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Foster noved back to the changes in the bill while
waiting for a representative fromthe adm nistration

M. Laboll e addressed the Juneau Access project on page 59,
line 8:

This is the Juneau Access Project. The original
version of the bill reappropriated funds left in that
project to the Alaska class ferry and to Northern Lynn
Canal transportation inprovenents. The Senate renoved
those reappropriations and this reinserts the sane
reappropriations.

Co-Chair Foster noted that the Departnent of Law was
onl i ne.

JOHN SKIDMORE, DI RECTOR, CRIM NAL DI VISION, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW was avail abl e for questions.

Vice-Chair Gara spoke to prosecutor positions. He asked
whether, if $5 mllion was split over a three-year period
it would suffice or whether they could make do with |ess.

M. Skidnore replied that the figures used by DOL were
$225,000 per attorney. He could not deternmine where the
prosecutors woul d be placed until he had seen the resources
appropriated by the legislature. He rem nded the conmttee
that the departnent had not requested additional funds,
however, they would evaluate where those funds would be
used if the noney was all ocat ed.

Vi ce-Chair Gara referred to the attorney cost. He
calculated it was approximately seven or eight attorneys.
He asked if it nmet the need.

M. Skidnore replied that in ternms of the need - if there
were additional funds appropriated, the departnment would

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



use funds to engage in additional prosecutions. It was
difficult to specify the need. He believed they were
currently prosecuting cases with 11 prosecutors, and as the
positions had been reduced, they had reduced the nunber of
prosecutions. He felt it was a subjective evaluation when
it came to the nunber of prosecutions the state wanted to
carry out.

2: 35: 53 PM

Vice-Chair Gara remarked that the departnent had | ost about
11 prosecutors and the bill |anguage would add about 7. He
asked if the increment would be sufficient to prosecute
nore cases.

M. Skidnore answered that it would return the nunber of
prosecutors to just below the |evel of about three years
earlier. He added that during the sanme tineframe the state
had been doing fewer prosecutions also because there had
been fewer referrals fromlaw enforcenent. He did not have
the data on hand. He believed the departnent woul d have the
ability to do nore prosecutions with nore staff, but he did
not believe it was necessary to return to the nunber of
three years earlier.

2:38:35 PM

Representative WIson spoke to the bill that specified “to
hire prosecutors.” She asked whether the departnment would
only need it because sone cases went on |onger than others.

M. Skidnore answered that the department did not generally
hire contractors for prosecution cases. The only tine in
which this would happen was for a very specific appeal or
post-conviction relief in which there was an obvious
[imtation on the work required. He did not believe the
department woul d; however, the departnent had found itself
short-staffed on a nunmber of occasions and in order to fill
gaps due to famly |leave, DOL had contenplated bringing in
former experienced prosecutors.

Representative WIson asked if M. Skidnore was concerned
that the increnent would only last three years, and that
hiring people may involve letting them go at the end of
t hat peri od.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



M. Skidnore answered in the affirmative and added that it
woul d take considerabl e thought from nmanagenment on how t hat
woul d be addressed.

2:41: 53 PM

Representative Neuman remarked he had concerns about
appropriating leftover capital nonies from capital projects
for an operating budget increnent. He discussed that in the
past the funds had been used to receive federal matching
funds for highway funds. He believed it could |eave a
consi derabl e hole in the operating budget of $500 mllion.

Representative GQuttenberg found it frustrating to hear
there were not enough referrals from the troopers. He
thought it my be that nore prosecutors wthout nore
troopers may be the cause. He spoke to a rise in burglaries
in his district.

M. Skidnore responded in the affirmative. He spoke to the
need for balance across the crimnal justice system He
t hought that in part it was due to a lack of deferrals
however, the percentage of referrals declined had increased
due to a lack of prosecutors. If the referrals increased
the departnent would definitely need nore prosecutors.

2:45: 06 PM

Representative GQuttenberg asked about the inmpact on the $50
mllion allocation out of the AKLNG fund on the ongoing
project negotiations and efforts to get gas to the nmarket.

GENE THERRI AULT, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, STATEW DE ENERGY PQOLICY
DEVEL OPMVENT, ALASKA ENERGY  AUTHORI TY, DEPARTIVENT OF
COMWERCE, COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, replied that
the loss of the funding would be severely detrinental to
nmoving forward. He referred to a series of very positive
nmeetings in Washington, D.C., and it was clear the |oss of
fundi ng woul d put the brakes on the project.

Representative GQuttenberg asked for nore detail about
conversations M. Therriault had in Wshington, D.C. He
asked at which |evel of personnel they were discussing the
proj ect .

M. Therri aul t answered they had nmet with federal
Department of Transportation and with PHVSA - Pipeline and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Hazardous Materials Safety Adm nistration, which would make
determinations on the investnments for infrastructure and
could aid in managing the costs related to the project.
Departnment of Interior Secretary Zinke had been in the
state and had indicated the desire to develop nore oil and
gas on the North Slope, and the state needed infrastructure
to get gas to market. They nmet wth staff at the Wite
House who were working on the president’s infrastructure
endeavors, specifically energy infrastructure and making it
accessible to Alaska citizens and supporting mlitary
installations in Alaska. The CEO of Alaska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation (AGC), Keith Meyer, had changed
his travel plans in order to be present. He detailed it had
been a full afternoon of neetings wth various departnent
secretaries. Vice-President Pence had opened proceedings.
President Trunp had heard the recommendations at the end of
the neetings. He felt very positive about how the
adm nistration was viewing the project. He had net a nunber
of agency personnel who had experience working in Al aska,
so they understood the issues involved and were interested
in ensuring there was appropriate latitude given to the
project in regards to construction permtting. They had
i npressed upon the federal agencies that they would require
appropriate resources to ensure the project went forward

The departnment was |ooking to advance Federal Energy
Regul atory Comm ssion (FERC) and regulatory conponents.
They had cone up with draft letters of intent. The major
efforts were ained at establishing whether the project
could be regulated, financed, permtted, and whether there
were custoners. Once those conponents were established, the
proj ect could comence construction.

2:52: 44 PM

Representative CGuttenberg felt the project discussions had
gotten pretty far down the road.

Representati ve Neunman asked how close the project was to
establ i shing what the final cost was.

M. Therriault answered in the recent cal endar year, a |ot
of noney had been spent on engineering to get a better idea
of costs. Previous cal culations had been brought down to an
upper nunber of $43 billion, so it was still a project with
significant cost. Going from three trains to two trains
would drop the potential price dramatically. There would
still be the same size pipeline, as there was still

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



interest in having the sane capacity. The agency was
exam ning the market demand to discover how it m ght inpact
the price.

Representati ve Neuman requested the information through the
chair's office. He remarked that in going from three or
possible four trains to two, there would be significant
change in the costs.

2:55:24 PM

Vice-Chair Gara asked why the Trunp Admnistration would
want to help Al aska transport gas internationally.

M. Therriault answered it involved balance of trade, for
exanple with China. He described neetings with the Chinese
government and | arge energy purchasers, both in Al aska and
i n China.

Vi ce-Chair Gara asked how nmuch noney was still avail abl e.

M. Therriault answered there was $102 nillion at the
begi nning of the cal endar year. The rest of FY 17 was drawn
from for the effort with FERC. It involved a Iarger
expenditure at the beginning of the fiscal year then
tapered off near the end of FY 18.

Vice-Chair Gara asked for verification the plan was to use
all of the available funds through FY 18.

M. Therriault replied in the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Gara asked whether the permtting work could be
used a few years down the road.

M. Therriault answered that the approval by FERC and based
on his experience working at Al aska Energy Authority (AEA)
there were sonme FERC permts for hydro projects that could
be extended, which was not unusual. The agency believed the
project worked even at the current prices. It was felt
there was $1 billion of free cash flow just from operating
the conponents of the infrastructure, and additionally the
state woul d be selling gas nol ecul es.

3:00: 15 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Vice-Chair Gara had been skeptical that at current prices
the state could profit. He queried whether the nobney spent
woul d di sappear as the price was so |low and whether the
noney was well spent at the present time if the price was
hi gher in five or six years.

M. Therriault deferred to M. R chards.

FRANK Rl CHARDS, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, ALASKA GASLI NE
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATI ON (AGDC) (via tel econference), stated
hi s understandi ng of the question.

Vice-Chair Gara restated his question.

M. Richards replied the FERC process was for an
environmental inpact statenment. It was said there were
50,000 pages of environnental, safety, reliability and
engi neering data. Once FERC nmde the determ nation, the
normal timefranme for developing gas was about 18 nonths.
The agency had specifically asked that they conplete the
process by the end of 2018. If approval were received by
Decenber 31, 2018, the docunment would remain viable unti
2023. If construction did not begin imediately, the
docunment would stay active for three to five years. After
that, if FERC saw that there was no construction, it would
ask for a refresh of the data.

3:04: 26 PM

Co-Chair Seaton stated it had been generally described as a
FERC license. He referred to the $102 million and asked if
it would take the project to a FERC license or to a nunber
of other wunanswered questions before the project could
begi n.

M. Therriault deferred to M. Richards.

M. Richards answered that the budget presented to the
board for FY 17 and FY 18 was the anticipated cost to
advance to the FERC process. Currently there was a very
sound environnental docunent before FERC. The information
should be able to answer nost of the questions. If there
was an additional request for wetlands data, that could be
carried out in the field in a tinmely fashion. The goal was
to remain wwthin the funds appropriated in FY 17 and FY 18
expendi t ure.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Co-Chair Seaton asked for clarification of whether the
agency did or did not anticipate additional questions that
woul d extend the process.

M. R chards did not know what was in the mnds of the
regul ators, but there would be questions. He believed the
guestions that were brought forward could be answered wth
t he funds avail abl e.

M. Therriault added that the neetings and positive
reception had been surprising. Although there would be
guestions, the departnents were not supposed to use the
permtting process to grind projects to a halt. He believed
available dollars <could be stretched to conplete the
pr ocess.

Representative Pruitt asked whether during the neetings in
Washington, D.C., there was discussion not only of the
Al aska project, but many projects.

M. Therriault replied in the affirmative. He detailed it
had been clear it had not been to focus on particular
projects; however, as they talked about nechanisnms that
could be used, it was inplied that if presenters wanted to
use their project to highlight how a nechanism would be
beneficial, there would be that opportunity.

3:10: 19 PM

Representative Pruitt was trying to wunderstand whether
there was a consensus that the admnistration was fully
with the state.

M. Therriault answered that the summt at the Wite House
had been a discussion about incentivizing infrastructure
investnment. While that had been very positive, the neetings
with the personnel in the agencies had been the nost
productive. They all knew that the admnistration had a
focus on infrastructure and that their agencies were
supposed to wuse flexibility to get things through the
process.

3:12: 45 PM

M. Laboll e asked nenbers to return to page 52 of the bill
line 24 was the fiscal note adjustnent associated wth
passage of the Real 1D Act.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Representative Pruitt stated that the above-nentioned Iline
was regarding the Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Cor poration.

M. Labolle clarified he was referring to Section 24, line
28.

M. Labolle turned to page 55, |ine 28:

This is a reappropriation from the Knik Arm crossing
and environnental inpact statement and from DWA
deferred mai ntenance projects arnming facilities to the
Depart ment of Educati on.

It continues on to the next page where it lists the
Department of MIlitary and Veterans Affairs deferred
mai nt enance projects and it reappropriates that to the
Departnment of Education for construction of the
Kivalina K-12 replacenent. The anmount of t hat
appropriation is approximately $7 mllion and that is
the amount that is short in the original estimate in
for the construction of that school associated wth
t he Kasayul i e case.

3:15:18 PM

Representative Pruitt asked how rmuch of the $7.1 mllion
was coming from funding for the Knik Arm Project and how
much was fromthe Arny Guard portion.

M. Labolle clarified that $5 mllion was conmng from the

Knik Arm Project and the remaining $2.1 mllion conming from
DWA.

Representative Pruitt asked whether it was for the road or
for the school. M. Labolle responded it was for the
school .

Representative Pruitt asked about the road funding.
M. Labolle deferred to M. Carpenter.

M. Carpenter asked Representative Pruitt to repeat his
guesti on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 06/ 10/ 17 11:20 A M



Representative Pruitt asked whether there was still going
to be a need for noney in the future for the road. He
t hought $8 million was needed for the road project.

M. Carpenter responded that the anmpbunt for the road was
upwards of $54 million. He added that this noney conpleted
what was required to fulfill Kasayulie case to build the
Ki val i na School

Representative Pruitt asked what had changed resulting in
the need for an additional $7 mllion.

M. Carpenter answered that it was a timng issue. The
anmount in the settlement was determned, then a new CP

[Capital Inprovenent Project] priority report cane out
subsequently with higher anounts. Even though the
settlenment gave a certain nunber, it was determ ned that
the state was still liable for the additional anount

subsequent | y.

Representative Pruitt asked if it was expected that al
obligations would be fulfilled within a relatively short
time.

M. Carpenter believed the anmount fulfilled the obligation

He renmarked there was nothing em nent because the road had
to be built prior to its construction. He would defer to
DOT [ Al aska Departnent of Transportation] on that issue.

Representative Pruitt asked about appropriations being
necessary at the current tinme, and whether the costs would
increase over tinme, given that there was no current
tinmeline.

Co-Chair Foster asked if Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED) coul d beconme avail able for questions.

3:21: 07 PM

Representative Tilton asked about required followthrough
regarding the Knik Arm Project and whether any nonies would
have to be returned to the federal governnent.

M. Carpenter believed no noney would have to be returned.
He thought it would be a good idea to hear from DOT.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Representative Neuman asked about the total cost of the
school and the road. He also asked about the nunber of
students that would attend the school.

M. Labolle responded $45 million for the school and then
later $7 mllion was added to the assessnent. The cost of
the road was approximately $57 million. He deferred to DEED
for the nunber of students.

Representative Neuman confirnmed that the total was around
$110 nmillion and reiterated his interest in receiving
student nunbers.

M. Labolle replied in the affirmative.

3:23:24 PM

M KE VI GUE, DI RECTOR OF PROGRAM DEVELOPNMENT, DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATI ON AND PUBLI C FACI LI TI ES, replied to
Representative Tilton's question regarding nonies returned
to the federal governnent and stated that there would be no
requi renent to re-pay noney for that project.

Representative Pruitt asked whether there was federa
participation in the road project and what the tineline was
for the school construction.

M. Vigue answered the departnent was currently using
federal highway funds to conplete an EIS [environnental
i mpact study] in collaboration with the borough. He would
find out what the schedule was but the design could not be
conpleted until the NEPA [National Environnmental Policy
Act] docunent was conpl et ed.

Representative Pruitt asked about the typical tinmefrane and
expectation of the design after that phase.

M. Vigue replied there were nunerous variables that would
dictate the tineframe. Typically it would take a couple of
years, but this would assune that permitting was inmedi ate.

Representative Pruitt stated the road would not be
conpleted for several years and he believed the school

could not begin construction until the road was conplete

He asked for confirmation that it would take anywhere from
two to ten years to conplete.

M. Vigue answered in the affirmative.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



3:27:22 PM

Representati ve Neuman asked what authority DOl had to use
federal highway funds for the road project to the school.

M. Vigue answered that the departnent was allowed to use
apportionments from the Federal Hi ghway Adm nistration on
any public road in the state of Alaska. It was not unusua
to use such fund to build the road.

Representative WIson stated the school was in a unique
position with the road issue. She asked whether there was a
problem of violations as the state could not build the
school until the road was built.

HEI DI TESHNER, DI RECTOR, SCHOOL FINANCE AND FACILITIES,
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT (via
tel econference), replied there had been conversations wth
the borough and the school district. It seened the road
pi ece was noving forward so that construction on the school
coul d comrence.

Representative WIson asked whether the anount of noney
named was to avoid problens with the court case.

Ms. Teshner asked for verification she was referring to the
$7.1 mllion.

Representative WIlson was talking nore broadly than the
$7.1 mllion. She asked what the exact figure was for the
proj ect .

Ms. Teshner responded that the full amount was al nost
$63 mllion to build the school, and that $7.1 mllion was
in addition to the $43 mllion already given. The
understanding was that this was the full anmount required
and no nore woul d be asked for.

Representati ve W son t hought it meant t hey wer e
$13 million short.

M. Carpenter thought she had said $53 million total.

Ms. Teshner clarified that she had neant $63 mlli on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Representative WIson asked for a firm nunber so that the
school would be fully funded and the state would be in
conpl i ance.

M. Carpenter asked Ms. Teshner whether she was including
the | ocal match

3:33: 02 PM
AT EASE

3:51:33 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chai r Foster referred to a letter from the
adm nistration pertaining to the Kivalina School .

Representative WIlson noted the letter was currently being
copi ed for menbers.

Co- Chair Foster thought the final nunber had been reached.

Representati ve W son expl ai ned t hey wer e capi tal
i mprovenent funds and there was a 20 percent match required
by the borough, which added up to the $63 mllion figure
There was a difference between the state and borough share.

Vice-Chair Gara asked for verification that the road had
not been funded in the past.

M. Labolle replied that the road had not been funded. He
could not guarantee the appropriation would fund the
construction of the road.

Vice-Chair Gara asked about the Alaska State Trooper
appropriation.

Co- Chair Foster noted the issue was separate.

PAT PITNEY, D RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET,
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, addressed a letter from the
adm nistration related to the Kivalina School [addressed to
Senator Anna MacKi nnon from the Departnent of Law, related
to the Kasayulie v State case, dated April 9, 2015, (copy
on file)]. She stated that making the appropriation cleaned
up the obligation fromthe state for the settl enent.

Representative WIlson read frompage 2 of the letter:

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



.another possibility that we believe fully conplies
wth the consent decree would be an appropriation,
effective no later than July 1, 2015, in the anmount of
$50, 475, 822. The sum of $50, 475,822 represents the
total current eligible amunt the Kivalina School
could receive, mnus the Northwest Arctic Borough's
partici pating share.

She believed it would be the best the legislature would
receive in terns of a guarantee. She highlighted that the
road was not part of it.

3:56: 34 PM

Representative Otiz asked about the current situation with
the students in the Kivalina region. He asked where they
currently attended school .

Ms. Teshner replied the students were continuing to attend
school at the existing facility. There were approximtely
56 unhoused students.

Representative Pruitt asked for clarification

Ms. Teshner answered that at the time of the original
application the Kivalina School had about 56 unhoused
students which neant that there had not been enough room
They were attending, but they were over capacity, so
consi dered wunhoused. Hence the need for a replacenent
school

Representative WIson shared that she had been to Kivalina
and the school had to use outbuildings. There was another
| egal menorandum dated April 13, 2016, and within it the
Novenber 2013 CIP priority list. She remarked that if the
required amount was growing by $7 mllion every two or
three years, it was pretty alarmng. She would distribute
t he docunent to nmenbers.

3:59:12 PM

Vice-Chair Gara spoke to two increases in the Senate
capital budget. He spoke to an increnent related to state
troopers. He asked for verification the operating budget
contained funds for 20 trooper positions that had not been
filled.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative. The state was having
difficulty with trooper recruitnment and retention. Once all
positions were filled, the admnistration would be happy to
request additional funds for troopers.

Vice-Chair Gara did not realize there were 20 wunfilled
trooper positions. He nentioned a new 6 percent increase in
the trooper |abor contract in the current year. He asked if
the state would still have the ability to hire the
addi ti onal positions.

Ms. Pitney answered there was sufficient funding to hire
for the positions. She added that there had recently been a
trooper graduation with only five graduates. The funding
was available and it would take time to hire new troopers.

Vice-Chair Gara asked if M. Pitney could confirm in
witing that there was funding for 20 or however many
positions in order to have an informed discussion on the
House fl oor.

Ms. Pitney conplied.

Representative WIlson asked if the state library was bonded
or had been paid for in full with different appropriations.

Ms. Pitney replied it had been a GO [general obligation]
bond appropriation in 2012.

Representative WIson spoke to nunmerous reappropriations.
She wondered why they were not paying off the bond debt
i nstead of reappropriating funds.

Ms. Pitney answered there was a conbination, but the bulk
was GO bonded.

Representative Wl son renmarked there was still had debt.

Representative Otiz asked for verification there were
numerous vacant Village Public Safety Oficer (VPSO
positions. He asked if there was funding available for
t hose as wel | .

Ms. Pitney spoke to recruitnment challenges wth VPSO

positions. She stated that the Departnent of Public Safety
(DPS) was working on that chall enge.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



4:04:29 PM

M. Labolle turned to page 76, |ine 12:

This is for the Alaska class ferry. It’s a
reappropriation for $1.2 mllion that was set aside
for art in the original appropriation and that was
being reappropriated to the Alaska class ferries for
equi pnent .

Representative WIlson asked if it neant noney originally
for artwork could be used for other purposes.

M. Labolle answered that the reappropriation had been
requested by the departnent.

BRI AN FECHTER, ANALYST, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET,
explained that 1in statute 1 percent of the value of
facilities had to be spent for art. As the MV Taku was
bei ng deconm ssioned, the art on the ferry could be nobved
el sewhere.

4:06:46 PM

Representative WIson asked if the same principle could be
applied to other buildings.

M. Fechter stated it would require special |anguage but
art that was not displayed could be used that way.

Representative WIlson hoped to wutilize the noney for
i brary books and ot her needs.

M. Laboll e advanced to page 76, |ine 20:

This is Jlanguage that allows the departnment to
backfill the federal highway match if reappropriations
made in this bill did not equal the $58 mllion
originally appropriated in the governor's budget. So,
Representative WIson earlier nentioned there being a
nunber of appropriations in this budget. The Senate

version of the bill took nunerous - over 100 -
appropriations to offset general funds that were in
the original version of the bill. Another item to

discuss ties into that, which is several of those
reappropriations were either not available or the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



anount of noney was incorrect and we’'ve made that
technical fix in the bill as well, though you won’t
see it Dbecause you can’'t show sonmething that’s not
there, so going through that process and finding out
ok, well we’'ve identified these approximtely 25
reappropriations that are not available or the anounts
were incorrect, so this language is in there in case
any of those remaining appropriations were also not
avail abl e or the ambunts were not correct.

Representative WIson asked if they were backfilling it
wi th general funds.

M. Labolle replied in the affirmative.

Representative WIson asked if DOI was required to use the
nmoney only for match.

M. Labolle replied in the affirmtive - it specified
federal highway match. He noved to the next change on the
sane page:

This is, again, the reappropriation of the Al aska
Li quefied Natural Gas project and it’s $25 nillion.
The Senate version appropriated that to the Public
School Trust Fund. W changed that |anguage and
appropriated it to the Public Education Fund.

Representative Otiz asked if it had been part of the
$50 million appropriation.

4:10:27 PM

M. Labolle replied that it was $25 mllion and that it was
i ndeed part of the $50 million appropriation.

Representative WIson thought they had skipped a $10
mllion appropriation for road nmai ntenance and pl ow ng.

M. Labolle noted no change had been nade to the provision.
Representati ve W | son request ed to hear from the
department. She asked how DOT was planning on utilizing the

funds.

M. Vigue answered that the $10 nmillion would be used for
itens which were not typically federally funded. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



specified that federal funds could not be used for potholes
and simlar naintenance itens.

Representative WIson asked if the departnent had
mai nt enance lists for those things which required state
noney.

M. Vigue replied that DOT had a long list of deferred
mai nt enance needs. He would ensure that it was provided to
the | egislature.

Representative WIson asked whether there would be new
hires to acconplish this or whether the noney would be
utilized for materials.

M. Vigue answered the noney would be for current crew and
for commodities.

4:13:12 PM

M. Labolle addressed the |ast change - the House version
renoved the $288 mllion appropriation from the Statutory
Budget Reserve (SBR) to the oil and gas tax credit fund.

Representative Neuman asked for the page nunber. M.
Labolle replied that it had been renoved fromthe bill.

Representative Neuman asked for a repeat of t he
information. M. Labolle conplied.

Representative Pruitt asked where that left the state's
remai ning obligation. M. Labolle replied that it was
approxi mately $1 billion.

Representative Neuman asked if $288 million renained in the
SBR. M. Labolle replied in the affirmative.

4:14:56 PM

Representative WIson asked about the difference between
the Public School Trust Fund and the Public Education Fund.

M. Labolle replied that the trust fund put out noney used
for education versus the public education fund that
directly paid for the Base Student Allocation (BSA).

Ms. Teshner asked for clarification on the question.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Representative WIson spoke to the funding change from the
Public School Trust Fund to the Public Education Fund. She
wanted to know the di fference was between the two funds.

Ms. Teshner replied that the public school trust fund was
managed by DOR and had to do with incone from the sale or
| ease of land through an act of Congress. The education
fund was the nechanism paying for the BSA and pupi
transportation.

Co- Chair Foster asked for verification the BSA was paid out
of that.

Ms. Teshner replied in the affirmative.

Representative WIson asked for verification that funds
were not typically put into the trust fund, only into the
education fund.

Ms. Teshner answered in the affirmative. She detailed the
trust was the investnent, wused to help pay for the
foundati on program

4:17:31 PM

Representati ve Neunman believed when the federal governnent
gave Alaska its portion of federal Ilands, part of that
noney went into the “Public Trust School Education Fund.”

Representative Pruitt asked about reappropriation |anguage
very simlar to what had originally been in the governor's
budget related to the Juneau Access project. He believed
the governor was not opposed to Senate |anguage that
removed the itemfromthe budget. He asked for detail.

Ms. Pitney answered that the governor was not opposed to
the Senate's action. The Senate left the funding in the
proj ect .

Representative Pruitt noted the funds were intended to
match ot her federal noney. He asked for the total project
cost .

Ms. Pitney believed the total project cost was estinated at

$550 mllion - others had estimated it wuld be $750
mllion. It did not inpact the federal matching funds.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



4:20:31 PM

Representative Pruitt clarified that no additional noney
was needed. He asked for confirmation that state’s
obligation was conplete and the reset would be fulfilled by
f ederal noney.

Ms. Pitney responded it depended on the total project cost.
Through the highway process, the selection of the no-build
option had been subm tted.

Representative Pruitt stated that the Cty of Juneau and
City Assenbly had recently passed a resolution of support
for the project that had been sent to the governor.

Ms. Pitney replied that the governor understood that the
City of Juneau was in support of the project.

Vice-Chair Gara verified that adding the Juneau Access
project would not increase the anobunt of federal funding
com ng in.

Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Gara surmised in the future a future Juneau
access road would take federal funds away from another
proj ect.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Gara asked for verification that the governor
had not been planning on spending funds on the project in
the current year because the project had been put on halt.

Ms. Pitney answered in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Gara surmsed if the noney were put back in the
fund, that project would still be on halt.

Ms. Pitney answered it would take a reopening of the
project and review, which would take a considerabl e anopunt
of time. The noney was to stay in the bank wth that
project name on it.

Representative Neunman thought there had been sone
m sinformation stated. He spoke to the Juneau Access

House Fi nance Conmmittee 24 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



project and the Knik Arm Bridge project. He had submtted
letters to the governor from the then DOT comm ssioner and
the chief planner, M. Qteson, both stating there would be
no issue of losing federal funding at the tine for other
state projects. The Statewi de Transportation |nprovenent
Program (STIP) would be re-evaluated but would not renove
funds fromany project in the state.

Representative Pruitt wanted to confirm there was not
another $500 mllion project the funds would be noved to.
He stated there were not that many l|large project so this
woul d i npact federal funds.

4:25:12 PM

Co- Chair Seaton asked about the approximate size of the
STIP. He wondered if it was |arge enough to absorb any
funds in the project.

Ms. Pitney answered that her colleague M. Vigue had to
ensure projects were noving and that nore were in the
pi peline. The departnent planned not to have any avail able
federal funds not utilized in the state.

Representative Pruitt countered there were a limted nunber
of projects for which federal funds were avail abl e.

Ms. Pitney answered there were nore projects on the
planning list for transportation than there was federal
funding avail able. The departnent consciously naintained a
larger list in the event a project higher on the list ran
into problens. There were enough priorities to wutilize
federal funds for the tinmefrane of the STIP, which was a
si x-year outl ook.

4:27:25 PM

Representative WIson asked LFD for the anmounts in the
Publ i ¢ Education Fund and in the trust fund.

Co-Chair Foster noted the commttee would recess prior to
t aki ng up anmendnents.

Representative Pruitt asked whether there would Dbe

flexibility regarding format and subm ssion of conceptual
anmendnent s.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



Co-Chair Foster responded there had been anendnents
submtted to a prior version of the bill and whether they
would match up would be addressed by Legislative Legal
Ser vi ces.

Representati ve Pruitt expl ai ned t here wer e sever al
substantial changes in the CS. He believed there were
menbers with concerns about having anendnents prepared to
meet the timefrane.

4:30:43 PM

Co- Chai r Foster stat ed there were currently f our
amendnents. He understood the tineline was very short and
woul d al | ow anendnents up until 2 p.m

4:31:14 PM
AT EASE

4:36: 00 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Foster noted the neeting would recess to address
sonme of the issues discussed during the neeting.

4:36: 20 PM
RECESSED

10: 04: 11 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Foster relayed the neeting would recess until 2:00
p.m the follow ng day.

Co-Chair Seaton relayed that the commttee was waiting on
the drafting of anendnents.

[ Note: Meeting Reconvened the follow ng day, see separate
m nutes docunent dated June 11, 2017 at 2:00 p.m for
detail.]

#
10: 04: 57 PM
RECESSED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 06/ 10/17 11:20 A M



House Fi nance Conmmittee 27 06/ 10/ 17 11:20 A M



